
Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

AGENDA 
Thursday, October 17, 2024 

1:00pm – 3:00pm 
City Hall 

1 Dr Carlton B Goodlett Pl, Room 305 
San Francisco, CA 94102 

Members of the Public who are unable to attend the meeting in person, but would like to provide public comment or 
watch the meeting can do so remotely through the following zoom information: 

Join Zoom Meeting 
• https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81716545397?pwd=U0FocWltOWMwZ2FqVU9kN082bDlZdz09
• Meeting ID: 817 1654 5397
• Passcode: 797944

Dial by your location 
• +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
• Meeting ID: 817 1654 5397
• Passcode: 797944
• Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcSP42G15s

Note: Each member of the public will be allotted no more than 2 minutes to speak on each item. 

111

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81716545397?pwd=U0FocWltOWMwZ2FqVU9kN082bDlZdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcSP42G15s


Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

1. Call to Order and Introductions.

2. Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement (discussion only).

3. Public Comment on Any Item Listed Below as for “Discussion Only.”  (NOTE: public comment on items listed
as “possible action” will occur during that agenda’s time).

4. Review and Adoption of Meeting Minutes of July 18, 2024 Council Meeting (discussion & possible action).

5. Introduction to Seats 1, 2, 3, 4, & 6 Board of Supervisor Appointees to the Reentry Council. (discussion).

6. Staff Report on Activities of the Reentry Council and its Subcommittees (discussion only).
a. Reentry Council Retreat – Wednesday, December 11th, 2:00pm – 4:00pm
b. Staff Updates
c. Subcommittee Updates

1) Women 1st  Subcommittee
2) Legislation, Policy, and Practices Subcommittee
3) Direct Action Subcommittee

7. Justice Service Overview – Jasmine Dawson, Department of Children Youth and Their Families (discussion
only).

8. Women’s Center – Rebecca Jackson, Community Forward (discussion only).

9. Fair Chance Ordinance - Jude Diebold, Human Rights Commission (discussion only).

10. Regular Update on Activities of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council, Sentencing Commission,
Collaborative Courts, and Community Corrections Partnership, STARR, Safety and Justice Challenge (discussion
only).

11. Racial Equity Work Updates –Departments are welcome to provide a Racial Equity Update for their Department
(discussion only).

12. Council Members’ Comments, questions and Requests for Future Agenda Items (discussion only).

13. Public Comment on any item on today’s agenda, or on other business within the purview of the Reentry Council
(discussion only).

14. Adjournment.

222



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

SUBMITTING WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENT TO THE REENTRY COUNCIL  
Persons who are unable to attend the public meeting may submit to the Reentry Council, by the time the proceedings 
begin, written comments regarding the subject of the meeting.  These comments will be made a part of the official public 
record, and brought to the attention of the Reentry Council.  Written comments should be submitted to: Victoria 
Westbrook, Interim Reentry Policy Planner, Adult Probation Department, 880 Bryant Street, Room 200, San Francisco, 
CA 94103, or via email: reentry.council@sfgov.org.  

MEETING MATERIALS  
Copies of agendas, minutes, and explanatory documents are available through the Reentry Council’s website at 
http://sfreentry.com or by calling Victoria Westbrook at (415) 930-2202 during normal business hours.  The material can 
be FAXed or mailed to you upon request. 

ACCOMMODATIONS 
To obtain a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the 
meeting, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at least two business days 
before the meeting.  

TRANSLATION  
Interpreters for languages other than English are available on request. Sign language interpreters are also available on 
request. For either accommodation, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at 
least two business days before the meeting. 

CHEMICAL SENSITIVITIES 
To assist the City in its efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical 
sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to 
various chemical based products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals. 

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative 
Code) 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils 
and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations 
are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. Copies of the Sunshine 
Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Public Library, and on the City's 
web site at: www.sfgov.org/sunshine.  

FOR MORE INFORMATION ON YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE OR TO REPORT A 
VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE, CONTACT THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE TASK FORCE: 
Administrator 
Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 
City Hall, Room 244 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place,  
San Francisco, CA 94102-4683.  
Telephone: (415) 554-7724 
Fax: (415) 554-5163 
E-Mail: soft@sfgov.org

CELL PHONES 
The ringing of and use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this 
meeting. Please be advised that the Co-Chairs may order the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible 
for the ringing or use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices. 

333

mailto:veronica.martinez@sfgov.org
http://sfreentry.com/
http://www.sfgov.org/sunshine


Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

LOBBYIST ORDINANCE 

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by 
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance (SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code sections 2.100-2.160) to register and 
report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the Ethics Commission at 30 
Van Ness Avenue, Suite 3900, San Francisco CA 94102, telephone (415) 581-2300, FAX (415) 581-2317, and web site 
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/ 

444

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/


Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, July 18, 2024 

1:00pm – 3:00pm 
City Hall 

1 Dr Carlton B Goodlett Pl, Room 305 
San Francisco, CA 94102 

Members of the Public who are unable to attend the meeting in person, but would like to provide public comment or 
watch the meeting can do so remotely through the following zoom information: 

Join Zoom Meeting 
• https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81716545397?pwd=U0FocWltOWMwZ2FqVU9kN082bDlZdz09
• Meeting ID: 817 1654 5397
• Passcode: 797944

Dial by your location 
• +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
• Meeting ID: 817 1654 5397
• Passcode: 797944
• Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcSP42G15s

Note:  Each member of the public will be allotted no more than 2 minutes to speak on each item. 

555

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81716545397?pwd=U0FocWltOWMwZ2FqVU9kN082bDlZdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcSP42G15s


Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

Members Present: 
Ranon Ross for District Attorney, Sheriff Paul Miyamoto (SFSO), Chief Cristel Tullock (SFAPD), Deputy Chief 
Jennifer James for Chief Chris Carubba-Katz (US Probation), Theresa Ick for Grant Colfax (DPH), Kristine King 
for Mark Culkins (Superior Court), Onyanga Dean (CDCR), Freda Randolph Glen (DCSS), Commander Jack 
Hart for Chief William Scott (SFPD), Susie Smith for Trent Rohr (HSA), Allen Harven (Mayoral Appointee), 
Jabari Jackson (BOS Appointee), Aaquilah Islam (HSH), Jasmine Dawson (DCYF), David Mauroff (BOS 
Appointee – Pretrial Diversion Services), Assistant Chief Gabe Calvillo for Chief Katy Miller (Juvenile 
Probation), Tatiana Lewis (Mayoral Appointee); Antonio Napolean (Mayoral Appointee); Ken Nim (OEWD) 
Phillip Rodriguez (State Parole) 

Members Absent: 
Catherine Stefani (BOS), Joanna Hernandez (BOS Appointee), Jusef Nathan (BOS Appointee), L Hurshman 
(BOS Appointee), James Caldwell (Mayor’s Office), Manohar Raju (Public Defender). 

1. Call to Order and Introductions.
Chief Cristel Tullock called the meeting to order. She thanked Council members and members of the interested
public for attending the meeting. She acknowledged the other five Co-Chairs:

● Cristel Tullock, Chief of Adult Probation
● Manohar Raju, Public Defender
● Brooke Jenkins, District Attorney
● Paul Miyamoto, Sheriff
● James Caldwell, representing Mayor London Breed’s Office
Alek Hartwick completed Reentry Council Roll Call and indicated that there was quorum.

2. Ramaytush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement (discussion only).
Cristel Tullock read the Raymatush Ohlone Land Acknowledgement.

3. Public Comment on Any Item Listed Below as for “Discussion Only.”  (NOTE: public comment on items listed
as “possible action” will occur during that agenda’s time).
There was no Public Comment

4. Review and Adoption of Meeting Minutes of April 18, 2024 Council Meeting (discussion & possible action).
The Chair asked the Council for a motion to adopt the minutes.
Jabari Jackson made the motion to adopt the minutes.
Jasmine Dawson Seconded the motion.
Alek Hartwick conducted a roll call vote. The motion carried.
The Meeting Minutes of April 18, 2024 Council Meeting were adopted.

5. Staff Report on Activities of the Reentry Council and its Subcommittees (discussion only).
a. Staff Updates
b. Subcommittee Updates

1) Women 1st  Subcommittee
2) Legislation, Policy, and Practices Subcommittee
3) Direct Action Subcommittee

Richard Beal the Chair of the Direct-Action Subcommittee provided an update on the subcommittee and shared 
the currently planned Reentry Events for the remainder of 2024. 

666



Reentry Council  
City & County of San Francisco 

Victoria Westbrook, The SFAPD Reentry Division Director provided updates on the Women’s 1st subcommittee 
and shared their plans to host a Women’s Equality Day event at the CASC on Thursday, August 29th, 11am – 
2pm. 

 
Alek Hartwick, Legislative Affairs Manager for Adult Probation provided updates for The Legislation Policy and 
Practices subcommittee which included the status of the State Legislation the Reentry Council voted on as well as 
future subcommittee activities to propose amendments to the Fair Chance Ordinance.  

 
6. Approval of the Subcommittee Rosters (discussion & possible action). 

The Chair asked the Council for a motion to approve the three subcommittee rosters 
Freda Randolph Glen made the motion to approve the rosters. 
Sheriff Paul Miyamoto Seconded the motion. 
Alek Hartwick conducted a roll call vote. The motion carried. 
The rosters were approved. 

 
7. CalAIM Initiatives to Support Justice-Involved Populations – Alissa Riker, Director of Programs, Sheriff’s Office 

Alissa Riker, Director of Programs, Sheriff’s Office provided an update on the CalAIM Justice-Involved initiative 
including goals, focus areas, readiness assessment summary, and screening and enrollment data. 
 

8. Rapid Interventions to Expand Housing Outreach and Engagement Services - Aaquilah Islam, Manager of 
Housing Justice System Initiatives 
Aaquilah Islam, Manager of Housing Justice System Initiatives provided an update on the Homelessness 
Response System including Coordinated Entry Access Points, data on problem solving resolutions, interventions, 
Just Home Objectives, and Action Lab activities.  
 

9. Regular Update on Activities of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council, Sentencing Commission, 
Collaborative Courts, and Community Corrections Partnership, STARR  (discussion only). 
 
Teresa Ick, from the Department of Public Health provided an update on the Proposition 47 grant “Supporting 
Treatment and Reducing Recidivism which continues to utilize Salvation Army residential treatment beds at 
capacity and also continue to welcome referrals.  
 
Frida Randolph Glenn provided updates from the Sentencing Commission meeting that took place on June 27th, 
2024. Regular updates included sentencing commission activities and the vacant seat for the member of a non-
profit organization serving victims chosen by the Family Violence Council which they are actively coordinating 
to replace.  
 

10. Racial Equity Work Updates –Departments are welcome to provide a Racial Equity Update for their Department 
(discussion only). 
 
Suisie Smith from HSA provided Racial Equity work updates which expanded their office of Diversity Equity and 
Inclusion to include Accessibility and excited to be the first office to include ageism and ableism in DEI more 
broadly. 
 
Alek Hartwick provided Racial Equity Updates for Adult Probation which included the launch and dissemination 
of their Racial Equity Survey in collaboration with the Office of Racial Equity. This effort is in line with their 
Racial Equity Action Plan and serves to gather and address staff feedback on Racial Equity within the 
Department. 
 

11. Council Members’ Comments, questions and Requests for Future Agenda Items (discussion only). 
Future Agenda Items Identified: 

• Jasmine Dawson, DCYF will be presenting a Justice Systems Overview on their newest program 
grantees.  

777



Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

12. Public Comment on any item on today’s agenda, or on other business within the purview of the Reentry Council
(discussion only).
Lewis Eldridge, from Health Right 360 provided public comment to introduce their new Outreach Manager,
Cleao Jankins and to provide a space for contacts to reach out to Cleao.

13. Adjournment.
The next meeting will be on Thursday, July 18th at City Hall in Rm 305. Chief Cristel Tullock from Adult
Probation will be Chairing the meeting.

The Chair asked the Council for a motion to adjourn
Jabari Jankins made the motion to adjourn
Sheriff Paul Miyamoto Seconded the motion.

Alek Hartwick conducted a roll call vote. The motion carried.
Meeting Adjourned

888



Reentry Council  
City & County of San Francisco 

 
SUBMITTING WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENT TO THE REENTRY COUNCIL  
Persons who are unable to attend the public meeting may submit to the Reentry Council, by the time the proceedings 
begin, written comments regarding the subject of the meeting.  These comments will be made a part of the official public 
record, and brought to the attention of the Reentry Council.  Written comments should be submitted to: Victoria 
Westbrook, Interim Reentry Policy Planner, Adult Probation Department, 880 Bryant Street, Room 200, San Francisco, 
CA 94103, or via email: reentry.council@sfgov.org.  

 
MEETING MATERIALS  
Copies of agendas, minutes, and explanatory documents are available through the Reentry Council’s website at 
http://sfreentry.com or by calling Victoria Westbrook at (415) 930-2202 during normal business hours.  The material can 
be FAXed or mailed to you upon request. 
 
ACCOMMODATIONS  
To obtain a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the 
meeting, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at least two business days 
before the meeting.  
 
TRANSLATION  
Interpreters for languages other than English are available on request. Sign language interpreters are also available on 
request. For either accommodation, please contact Victoria Westbrook at reentry.council@sfgov.org or (415) 930-2202 at 
least two business days before the meeting. 
 
CHEMICAL SENSITIVITIES 
To assist the City in its efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical 
sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to 
various chemical based products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals. 
 
KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative 
Code) 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils 
and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations 
are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. Copies of the Sunshine 
Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Public Library, and on the City's 
web site at: www.sfgov.org/sunshine.  
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION ON YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE OR TO REPORT A 
VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE, CONTACT THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE TASK FORCE: 
Administrator 
Sunshine Ordinance Task Force 
City Hall, Room 244 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place,  
San Francisco, CA 94102-4683.  
Telephone: (415) 554-7724 
Fax: (415) 554-5163 
E-Mail: soft@sfgov.org   
 
CELL PHONES 
The ringing of and use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this 
meeting. Please be advised that the Co-Chairs may order the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible 
for the ringing or use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices. 
 
 
 

999

mailto:veronica.martinez@sfgov.org
http://sfreentry.com/
http://www.sfgov.org/sunshine


Reentry Council 
City & County of San Francisco 

LOBBYIST ORDINANCE 

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by 
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance (SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code sections 2.100-2.160) to register and 
report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the Ethics Commission at 30 
Van Ness Avenue, Suite 3900, San Francisco CA 94102, telephone (415) 581-2300, FAX (415) 581-2317, and web site 
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/ 

101010

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics/


Reentry Council

DCYF’s Justice 
Services Strategies

O c to b e r  1 7 ,  2 0 2 4

1111



Agenda

I. RFP Planning Processes & Justice Services Allocation
II. Overview of Justice Services
III. Justice Services Strategies &  Target Populations
IV. Technical Assistance and Capacity Building & Program

Monitoring
V. Questions

1212



DCYF’s RFP Planning Process
• Mayor Breed’s Juvenile Justice Reform Blue Ribbon Panel (2019): Recommended building a comprehensive and

system-wide reform that stressed the importance of effective service coordination, collaboration, and delivery
through healing-centered approaches; the process included gathering feedback from community and systems
stakeholders.

• Close Juvenile Hall Working Group (2019): San Francisco Board of Supervisors voted to close down the Juvenile Hall
and created a taskforce to propose alternatives to the traditional facility.

• DJJ Realignment Subcommittee (2021) – As mandated by SB 823, which closed the Division of Juvenile Justice (DJJ),
this subcommittee of the Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council developed San Francisco’s DJJ Realignment Plan for
providing care to youth who would have previously been committed to state youth prison. This public process
included city agencies, community organizations, formerly juvenile justice involved adults, and members of the
public.

• Community Needs Assessment (2022): First phase of DCYF planning cycle that deeply engages children, youth,
TAY/A, and their families to understand their current strengths and challenges while ensuring that their voices are
represented throughout the planning process.

• Services Allocation Plan (2023): Second phase of the DCYF planning cycle that articulated DCYF’s strategic plan for
addressing the needs and disparities highlighted in the CNA; describes the service areas and partnerships we intend
to support and allocates resources to them.

• DCYF worked jointly with Justice Partners to create Request for Funding Proposals strategies in Justice Services
(2023): RFP is the last phase of DCYF planning cycle. The RFP was released October 2023, decisions announced
April 2024. Will be a 5-year funding cycle, 2024-2029, programming will begin July 1st. 1313



Funding Allocation: Justice Services
Allocation Overview ($12.8M)

Allocation Strategy/Initiative # of Grants
$1.5M SF Community Assessment and Referral Center 1

$1.4M Credible Messenger Life Coaches 4

$2.1M Custody-Based Services 12
$3.5M Justice Services Care Coordinators 6
$1.8M School Crisis Support 5
$800K Out of Home Placement 1
$300K Whole Family Supports 1

$1.3M Young Adult Court Case Management 1

1414



Overview of Justice Services

1515



Agencies and Programs 
Custody-Based Services

Border Youth Tennis Exchange Inc. Sport for Healing & Coach Workforce 
Development

Ages 12-25 in Juvenile Detention Units and 
Ages 14-25 in Juvenile Commitment

Centers for Equity and Success, 
Inc.

Inside/Out Pathways Ages 12-25 in Juvenile Detention Units and 
Ages 14-25 in Juvenile Commitment

Five Keys Schools and Programs Five Keys Proposal: TAY/A Resilience in San 
Francisco County Jail  & JJC Resilience for 
Committed TAY

Ages 14-25 in Juvenile Commitment; and
TAYA ages 18-24 in SF County Jail

Health Initiatives for Youth (HIFY) Building Futures Ages 12-25 in Juvenile Detention Units

Potrero Hill Neighborhood House PEER Counseling Program Ages 12-25 in Juvenile Detention Units

Scholastic Interest Group Genesis Ages 14-25 in Juvenile Commitment

1616



Agencies and Programs
Custody-Based Services Con’t

Sharp Circle Inc. Life Ownership Program with Re-entry Services Ages 12-25 in Juvenile Detention Units;
Ages 14-25 in Juvenile Commitment; 
TAYA ages 18-24 in SF County Jail

Special Service for Groups, 
Inc.

HBD: Healing By Doing & HBD Ages 14-25 in Juvenile Commitment

Success Stories Program Success Stories Program Ages 12-25 in Juvenile Detention Units;
Ages 14-25 in Juvenile Commitment; TAYA 
ages 18-24 in SF County Jail

Sunset Youth Services Juvenile Hall Programming Ages 12-25 in Juvenile Detention Units;
Ages 14-25 in Juvenile Commitment

The Art of Yoga Project The Art of Yoga Project (AYP) Juvenile Detention 
Units

Ages 12-25 in Juvenile Detention Units

The Beat Within a Program 
for Intersection of the Arts

The Beat Within Writing and Conversation 
Workshops

Ages 12-25 in Juvenile Detention Units

1717



Agencies and Programs

Centers for Equity and 
Success, Inc.

Credible Messengers Ages 12-25 in custody at the Juvenile Justice 
Center

Community Works West, Inc. RISE (Reach Inside for Strength 
and Excellence)

Ages 12-25 who are at-risk, system-impacted, or 
directly involved in the juvenile justice system 
and residing in the community

Operation Genesis Inc Neighborhoods United Ages 12-25 who are at-risk, system-impacted, or 
directly involved in the juvenile justice system 
and residing in the community

Young  Women's Freedom 
Center 

Self-Determination Life 
Coaching

Ages 12-25 who are at-risk, system-impacted, or 
directly involved in the juvenile justice system 
and residing in the community; Ages 12-25 in 
custody at the Juvenile Justice Center
San Francisco Transitional Age Young Adults 
(TAYA) aged 18-24 in custody at SF County Jail

1818



Agencies and Programs
School Crisis Support

Community Youth Center of San 
Francisco

CYC School Violence 
Interrupters

Middle and High School At-risk youth

Instituto Familiar de la Raza Roadmap to Peace School 
Crisis

Middle and High School At-risk youth

Samoan Community Development 
Center

Pasifika On The Move Middle and High School At-risk youth

Urban Services YMCA Tailor Made Middle and High School At-risk youth
Young Community Developers School Site Mentoring Program Middle and High School At-risk youth

1919



Agencies and Programs
Justice Services Care Coordinators

Bay Area Community 
Resources

ReSET Justice Collaborative Ages 12-25 in the juvenile justice system; 
TAY/A involved in the adult criminal justice 
system ages 18-24

Center on Juvenile and 
Criminal Justice

Youth Justice Services (YJS) Ages 12-25 in the juvenile justice system;
TAY/A involved in the adult criminal justice 
system ages 18-24

MNC Inspiring Success MNC Care Coordinators Program Ages 12-25 in the juvenile justice system;
TAY/A involved in the adult criminal justice 
system ages 18-24

San Francisco Pretrial 
Diversion Project

TRI - TAY/A Release Initiative TAY/A involved in the adult criminal justice 
system ages 18-24

Sunset Youth Services Justice Services Ages 12-25 in the juvenile justice system;
TAY/A involved in the adult criminal justice 
system ages 18-24

Young Community 
Developers

Re-Entry Integrative Services for 
Employment (RISE) 

Ages 12-25 in the juvenile justice system

2020



Agencies and Programs

Huckleberry Youth Programs SF Community Assessment &
Referral Center (CARC)

Ages 12-18 involved with the 
juvenile justice system

San Francisco Community Assessment and Referral Center

Catholic Charities CYO of the 
Archdiocese of San Francisco

SF Boys Home STRTP Ages 12-18, ordered to out of home 
placement by the San Francisco 
Juvenile CourtYoung Adult Court Case Management

Out of Home Placement

Felton Institute Young Adult Court Ages TAYA with justice involvement 
ages 18-24

2121



Agencies and Programs

Project Avary Project Avary's Mentoring Program for 
Children and Youth with Incarcerated 
Parents

Ages 5-17 who have a parent or caregiver 
who is incarcerated

CARECEN Second Chance Youth Program & 
Tattoo Removal Clinic-Whole Family 
Supports

Ages 5-17 who have a parent or caregiver 
who is incarcerated; Ages 12-25 who are 
parents and involved in the justice system, 
including youth committed to and detained 
at JJC/Juvenile Hall, are in out-of-home 
placement, TAYA in custody and in the 
community; 
S parents of youth ages 12-25 who are in the 
justice system, including youth committed to 
and detained at JJC/Juvenile Hall, are in out-
of-home placement, and in the community

Whole Family Support

2222



Technical Assistance & Capacity Building

Ongoing Technical Assistance and Capacity 
Building, providers includes:
 ROCA
 National Institute for Criminal Justice

Reform
 Edutainment for Equity
 Blaze Consulting
 More…

2323



Program and Fiscal Monitoring

 Grants are managed by Program Specialists
 Program equality is assessed using the Youth &

School Aged Program Quality Assessment Tool from
the Weikart Center

 Surveys and Evaluations
 DCYF participates in City’s Joint Fiscal Monitoring

process with other departments

2424



Questions

2525



10/15/2024

FAIR CHANCE 
ORDINANCE
SF Human Rights Commission, Civil Rights 
Division

CIVIL RIGHTS 
DIVISION

 The Human Rights Commission (HRC), established in
1964, addresses the causes of and problems resulting
from prejudice, intolerance, bigotry, and discrimination.

 The Civil Rights Division enforces local anti-
discrimination ordinances and ensures compliance by
contractors in housing, employment, and public
accommodation settings.

 Civil Rights Division work includes protected classes
under all federal and state of California laws, as well as
protections unique to San Francisco.

1

2

2626



10/15/2024

WHAT WILL WE 
COVER 
TODAY:

• FCO Overview

• Examples of FCO Violations

• What to do if a housing provider
excludes people because of their
criminal history.

 Proposed legislative updates

FAIR CHANCE 
ORDINANCE

◦ Procedural Requirements:

 Criminal history information cannot be
requested or considered until the
applicant has been found to be eligible
for housing or employment

 Applicants/tenants must be given notice
about the FCO and an opportunity to
respond to information that shows up on
a background check

 Applicants must be assessed on an
individual basis:

 No blanket bans for criminal history

3

4

2727



10/15/2024

FAIR CHANCE 
ORDINANCE 

CONT.

 Criminal history information cannot be
requested or considered until the applicant has
been found to be eligible for housing or
employment

 Applicants/tenants must be given notice about
the FCO and an opportunity to respond to
information that shows up on a background
check

 Applicants must be assessed on an individual
basis:

 No blanket bans for criminal history

For complaints related to housing and criminal 
history, you will want to contact the Civil Rights 
Division at SFHRC, for complaints related to 
employment, you will want to contact the  
Office of Labor Standards Enforcement (OLSE) 

EXAMPLES OF 
FCO VIOLATIONS 
IN HOUSING

:

 Application or advertisement
states “we don’t rent to anyone
with a felony”

 Housing application form asks
about criminal history

 Housing provider rejects an
application due to criminal history
information, without conducting
an individualized assessment

 Housing provider rejects an
application due to criminal history
information, without giving the
applicant sufficient notice and an
opportunity to respond

 Housing provider rejects an
application because of a
conviction that occurred more
than 7 years ago

5

6

2828



10/15/2024

PROPOSED 
LANGUAGE 
CHANGES

 Add protected categories of
criminal history that cannot be
considered, this would include
protecting individuals for the
following activities that are legal in
California but illegal in other
states:

 Abortion related healthcare

 Gender affirming care

 Drag performances

WHAT TO DO 
ABOUT FCO 
VIOLATIONS

 For Affordable Housing in San Francisco

 Contact the Human Rights Commission

 Call HRC at 415-252-2500

 Email hrc.info@sfgov.org

 Visit the HRC office at 25 Van Ness Ave., 8th

Floor

 For employment in San Francisco

• Contact the Office of Labor Standards
Enforcement

• Office location: City Hall, Room 430

• Email: fco@sfgov.org

• Website:
https://www.sf.gov/departments/office-
labor-standards-enforcement

7

8

2929



10/15/2024

CONTACTING 
CRD

 Call 415-252-2500

 Email at
hrc.info@sfgov.org including your
availability to schedule an intake
appointment.

 Visit at 25 Van Ness St, Suite 800.
You will complete an intake form
and leave it with HRC staff or in
HRC drop box.

 In each case, a member of our
team will respond within three
business days.

9

3030



 Direct Action Subcommittee 
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of July 12, 2024 

Roster of Members 

Richard Beal (Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
richardb@thclinic.org 

Freda Randolph Glenn 
freda.randolph@sfgov.org 

Destiny Pletsch 
Destiny.Pletsch@usw.salvationarmy.org 

Emmeline Sun 
emmeline.sun@ucsf.edu 

Thompson Tran 
Thompson.Tran@usw.salvationarmy.org 

Joshua Short 
Member of the Reentry Community 
phattchancecommunity.josh@gmail.com 

Jay Sutter 
Member of the Reentry Community 
jsutter@sfgoodwill.org 

Gabe Singer 
gsinger@larkinstreetyouth.org 

Sandra Troncosa 
Member of the Reentry Community 
Stroncoso@sfgoodwill.org 

Mary Vandigriff 
Member of the Reentry Community 
mvandigriff@sfgoodwill.org 

Lakisha Richmond 
Member of the Reentry Community 
lrichmond@sfgoodwill.org 

Mike Paisley 
mike.pasley@bhpmss.org 

Rachel Kinnon 
Rachel.kinnon@sfpl.org 

Victoria Westbrook 
Member of the Reentry Community 
victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 

Steven Rice 
Member of the Reentry Community 
steven@codetenderloin.org 

CheRonn Ford 
Cheronn.ford@sfgov.org 

Joe Cordova 
joseph.cordova@sfgov.org 

For more information, contact  
Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Division 
Director, at victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 
or  
(415) 930-2202 or visit
https://www.sf.gov/departments/direct-
action-subcommittee

3131

mailto:richardb@thclinic.org
mailto:freda.randolph@sfgov.org
mailto:Destiny.Pletsch@usw.salvationarmy.org
mailto:emmeline.sun@ucsf.edu
mailto:Thompson.Tran@usw.salvationarmy.org
mailto:jsutter@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:Stroncoso@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:mvandigriff@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:lrichmond@sfgoodwill.org
mailto:Rachel.kinnon@sfpl.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org
mailto:steven@codetenderloin.org
mailto:Cheronn.ford@sfgov.org
mailto:joseph.cordova@sfgov.org


Women 1st Subcommittee 
Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of July 12, 2024 

Roster of Members 

Juthaporn Chaloeicheep (Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
chaloeicheepj@gmail.com 

Alisea Wesley-Clark 
Member of the Reentry Community 
aclark@westside-health.org 

Angie Wilson 
Member of the Reentry Community 
angela.wilson@sfgov.org 

Rebecca Jackson 
Member of the Reentry Community 
rebecca.jackson@communityforwardsf.org 

Shannon Wise 
Member of the Reentry Community 
shannonwise2000@yahoo.com 

Yves-Langston Barthaud 
ybarthaud@sfsafehouse.org 

Dakota Rose Austin 
Member of the Reentry Community 
dakotaroseaustin80@gmail.com 

Victoria Westbrook 
Member of the Reentry Community 
victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 

Da’vonna Smith 
davonna.smith@sfgov.org 

Brea Darnell 
brea.darnell@sfgov.org 

For more information, please contact  
Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Division 
Director at victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org or 
(415) 930-2202 or visit
https://www.sf.gov/departments/women-1st-
subcommittee

32

mailto:chaloeicheepj@gmail.com
mailto:aclark@westside-health.org
mailto:angela.wilson@sfgov.org
mailto:rebecca.jackson@communityforwardsf.org
mailto:shannonwise2000@yahoo.com
mailto:ybarthaud@sfsafehouse.org
mailto:dakotaroseaustin80@gmail.com
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org
mailto:davonna.smith@sfgov.org
mailto:brea.darnell@sfgov.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org


Subcommittee on Legislation, Policy & 
Practices 

Reentry Council of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of July 12, 2024 

Roster of Members 
Bobby Jones-Hanley (Chair) 
Member of the Reentry Community 
bobby.jones@croporg.org 

Tara Agnese 
tara.agnese@sfgov.org 

Melanie Kushnir 
MKushnir@sftc.org 

Linda Connelly 
lconnelly@successfulreentry.com 

Melanie Kim 
melanie.kim@sfgov.org 

Carolyn Goosen 
carolyn.goossen@sfgov.org 

Danielle McVay 
danielle.McVay@gmail.com 

Indiana Barrenechea 
indiana.barrenechea@ifrsf.org 

Jay Fraser 
jay.fraser@sfgov.org 

Joe Calderon 
Member of the Reentry Community 
josephcalderon@urban-alchemy.us 

Alek Hartwick  
alek.hartwick@sfgov.org 

Kristin Scott-Calip  
kristin.scott-calip@sfgov.org 

Ranon Ross 
ranon.ross@sfgov.org 

Katrina Baptiste 
katrina.baptiste@sfgov.org 

Victoria Westbrook 
Member of the Reentry Community 
victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 

CheRonn Ford 
Cheronn.ford@sfgov.org 

Joe Cordova 
joseph.cordova@sfgov.org 

For more information, please contact  
Victoria Westbrook, Reentry Division Director 
@victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org or  
(415) 930-2202 or visit
https://www.sf.gov/departments/legislation-
policy-practices-subcommittee.

33

mailto:bobby.jones@croporg.org
mailto:tara.agnese@sfgov.org
mailto:MKushnir@sftc.org
mailto:lconnelly@successfulreentry.com
mailto:melanie.kim@sfgov.org
mailto:carolyn.goossen@sfgov.org
mailto:danielle.McVay@gmail.com
mailto:indiana.barrenechea@ifrsf.org
mailto:jay.fraser@sfgov.org
mailto:josephcalderon@urban-alchemy.us
mailto:alek.hartwick@sfgov.org
mailto:kristin.scott-calip@sfgov.org
mailto:ranon.ross@sfgov.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org
mailto:Cheronn.ford@sfgov.org
mailto:joseph.cordova@sfgov.org
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org


Reentry Council 
of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of October 9, 2023 

Roster of Members 

Co-Chairs 
 

Cristel Tullock 
Chief Adult Probation Officer 
Adult Probation Department 
City & County of San Francisco 
850 Bryant Street, 2nd floor 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
Cristel.tullock@sfgov.org 
Executive Assistant: La Shaun Williams 
lashaun.r.williams@sfgov.org 
(415) 553-1687
Alternate: Assistant Chief Tommie Baines
tommie.baines@sfgov.org

Brooke Jenkins 
District Attorney 
Office of the District Attorney 
City & County of San Francisco 
350 Rhode Island Street 
North Building, Suite 400N 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
districtattorney@sfgov.org 
Confidential Assistant: Lee-Ann Collins 
lee-ann.collins@sfgov.org 
(415) 553-1742
Alternate: Edward McCaffrey
edward.mccaffrey@sfgov.org

Paul Miyamoto 
Sheriff 
Sheriff’s Office 
City & County of San Francisco 
City Hall, Room 456 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
sheriff@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Assistant Sheriff Tanzaneka Carter 
tanzaneka.carter@sfgov.org 

Manohar Raju 
Public Defender 
Office of the Public Defender 
City & County of San Francisco 
555 7th Street  
San Francisco, CA 94103 
manohar.raju@sfgov.org 
(415) 553-1677
Executive Assistant: Judy Liu
judy.liu@sfgov.org
(415) 553-1677
Alternate: Carolyn Goosen
Carolyn.Goossen@sfgov.org

Honorable London Breed 
Mayor of San Francisco 
City & County of San Francisco 
City Hall, Room 200 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
Alternate: James Caldwell 
james.caldwell@sfgov.org  

Billey Hoang Le  
Board Appointee (Seat 1) 
ble@sfsu.edu 

Anthony Partee 
Board Appointee (Seat 2) 
anthonypartee@barca-elinc.in 

Joanna Pulido 
Board Appointee (Seat 3) 
joannapulido@ramsinc.org 

Lorenzo Juan Castaneda  
Board Appointee (Seat 4) 
thewhoprogramsf@gmail.com 

19334

mailto:Cristel.tullock@sfgov.org
mailto:tommie.baines@sfgov.org
mailto:districtattorney@sfgov.org
mailto:lee-ann.collins@sfgov.org
mailto:edward.mccaffrey@sfgov.org
mailto:edward.mccaffrey@sfgov.org
mailto:sheriff@sfgov.org
mailto:tanzaneka.carter@sfgov.org
mailto:manohar.raju@sfgov.org
mailto:judy.liu@sfgov.org
mailto:Carolyn.Goossen@sfgov.org
mailto:james.caldwell@sfgov.org
mailto:ble@sfsu.edu
mailto:anthonypartee@barca-elinc.in
mailto:thewhoprogramsf@gmail.com


Reentry Council 
of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of October 9, 2023 

Other Members 

Catherine Stefani 
Supervisor, District 2 
Board of Supervisors 
City Hall 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 
San Francisco, Ca 94102-4689 
Catherine.stefani@sfgov.org 

William Scott 
Chief 
Police Department 
City & County of San Francisco 
1245 Third St. 
San Francisco, CA 94158 
William.scott@sfgov.org 
Executive Assistant: Rowena Carr 
Rowena.Carr@sfgov.org 
(415) 837-7000
Alternate: Cmdr. Peter Walsh
peter.walsh@sfgov.org

Katy Miller  
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer 
Juvenile Probation Department 
City & County of San Francisco 
375 Woodside Avenue, Room 243 
San Francisco, CA 94127 
Executive Secretary: Sheryl Cowan 
Sheryl.cowan@sfgov.org 
(415) 753-7556

Antonio Napoleon 
Mayoral Appointee 
ANapoleon@westside-health.org 

Allen Harven 
Mayoral Appointee 
allenharven42@gmail.com 

Tatiana Lewis 
Mayoral Appointee 
tatiana@prisonerswithchildren.org 

Mark Culkins 
Court Administrator 
Superior Court of California, County of San 
Francisco 
mculkins@sftc.org 

David Mauroff 
Representing San Francisco Pretrial 
Diversion Project 
Board Appointee (Seat 6) 
davidm@sfpretrial.org 

Cynthia Nagendra 
Deputy Director for Planning, Performance 
& Strategy 
Department of Homelessness & Supportive 
Housing 
cynthia.nagendra1@sfgov.org 

Kate Sofis  
Director of Office of Economic and Workforce 
Development  
City & County of San Francisco  
Alternate: Tajuana Gray  
tajuana.gray@sfgov.org  
Alternate 2: Ken Nim  
ken.nim@sfgov.org 

Chris Carrubba-Katz 
Chief U.S. Probation Officer  
Northern District of California 
U.S. Probation Office, U.S. District Court 
450 Golden Gate Avenue 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
chris_carrubba-katz@canp.uscourts.gov 
Alternate: Jennifer James 
Assistant Deputy Chief 
jennifer_james@canp.uscourts.gov 

203535

mailto:Catherine.stefani@sfgov.org
mailto:William.scott@sfgov.org
mailto:Rowena.Carr@sfgov.org
mailto:Sheryl.cowan@sfgov.org
mailto:ANapoleon@westside-health.org
mailto:allenharven42@gmail.com
mailto:tatiana@prisonerswithchildren.org
mailto:mculkins@sftc.org
mailto:davidm@sfpretrial.org
mailto:cynthia.nagendra1@sfgov.org
mailto:tajuana.gray@sfgov.org
mailto:chris_carrubba-katz@canp.uscourts.gov
mailto:jennifer_james@canp.uscourts.gov


Reentry Council 
of the City & County of San Francisco 

Current as of October 9, 2023 

Dr. Grant Colfax 
Department of Public Health 
City & County of San Francisco 
1380 Howard Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
Alternate: Angelica Almeida  
 angelica.almeida@sfdph.org 
2nd Alternate: Robin Candler 
robin.candler@sfgov.org 

Karen Roye 
Director 
Department of Child Support Services 
City & County of San Francisco 
617 Mission Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
karen.roye@sfgov.org 
Executive Assistant: Laurina Marcic 
laurina.marcic@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Freda Randolph Glenn 
freda.randolph@sfgov.org 

Trent Rhorer 
Executive Director 
Human Services Agency 
City & County of San Francisco 
170 Otis Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
trent.rhorer@sfgov.org 
Alternate: Susie Smith 
susie.smith@sfgov.org 

Maria Su 
Director 
Department of Children, Youth & Their 
Families 
City & County of San Francisco 
1390 Market Street, Suite 900 
San Francisco, CA 94102  
maria@dcyf.org 
Executive Assistant: Rebecca Corteza 
Rebecca.Corteza@dcyf.org 

Alternate: Jasmine Dawson  
Jasmine.dawson@sfgov.org 

Onyanga Dean 
District Administrator 
Division of Parole Operations 
California Department of Corrections & 
Rehabilitation 
1727 Mission St. 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
onyanga.dean@cdcr.ca.gov 
Alternate: Peter Tram 
Peter.tram@cdcr.ca.gov 

Staff 
Victoria Westbrook 
Reentry Policy Planner/ 
Women’s Gender Responsive Coordinator 
Adult Probation Department 
Community Assessment & Services Center 
564 6th Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org 
(415) 930-2200

For more information about the  
Reentry Council of the City and  
Council of San Francisco, please 
visit www.sfgov.org/reentry 

36

mailto:angelica.almeida@sfdph.org
mailto:robin.candler@sfgov.org
mailto:karen.roye@sfgov.org
mailto:laurina.marcic@sfgov.org
mailto:freda.randolph@sfgov.org
mailto:trent.rhorer@sfgov.org
mailto:james.whelly@sfgov.org
mailto:Rebecca.Corteza@dcyf.org
mailto:Jasmine.dawson@sfgov.org
mailto:onyanga.dean@cdcr.ca.gov
mailto:Peter.tram@cdcr.ca.gov
mailto:victoria.westbrook@sfgov.org

	Public Packet_Reentry Council_10.17.2024.pdf
	1. RC Agenda 10.17.2024.pdf
	Thursday, October 17, 2024

	Meeting Minutes - 7.18.2024.pdf
	Thursday, July 18, 2024


	DCYF Reentry Council Presentation on Justice Services_FINAL.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Agenda
	DCYF’s RFP Planning Process
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Technical Assistance & Capacity Building
	Program and Fiscal Monitoring
	Slide Number 15

	Public Packet_Reentry Council_10.17.2024
	FCO presentation for Re-Entry Council.pdf
	DA Roster 7.12.2024.pdf
	Women 1st Roster 7.12.2024.pdf
	LPP Roster 7.12.2024.pdf
	Roster 1 FULL-COUNCIL-10.17.2024_Update_Needed.pdf




